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NOTICE 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Fourteenth (14th) Annual General Meeting of Members of Octaware 
Technologies Limited will be held on Monday, the 19th day of August, 2019 at 10 a.m. at Unit 003, 
Tower II, Seepz++ Bldg., Seepz Sez, Andheri East, Mumbai-400096 to transact the following business: 
 
*************************************************************************************************** 
 
Ordinary Business: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2019 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mohammed Siraj Moinuddin Gunwan (DIN No.: 
02507021) who retries by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
3. Re-Appointment of M/s MVK Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of 

the Company: 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, (the Rules), (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), M/s. MVK Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai having ICAI Firm Registration No 120222W, who have confirmed their 
eligibility to be re-appointed as Auditors, in terms of provisions of Section 141 of the Act, and 
Rule 4 of the Rules, be and are hereby re- appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
hold office from the conclusion of this 14th Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion 
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, on a remuneration as may be agreed 
upon by the Board of Directors and the Auditors.” 
 
 

 
Special Business: 
 
 

4.    To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), read with Schedule IV of the Act, Ms. Rabia 
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Khan, (DIN: 08355059) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company in the 
category of Independent Director, by the Board of Directors with effect from February 11, 
2019 and who holds office until the date of this Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 
161 of the Act, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under 
Section 160 of the Act, from a member signifying his intention to propose Ms. Rabia Khan as 
a candidate for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director 
of the Company in the category of Independent Director for a term of 5 years up to February 
11, 2024 and whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 
 

                            By order of the Board of Directors 
For OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 

                                                                            
                                                               
                                                                                                                SD/-      
         Date:  29.07.2019                                     MOHAMMED ASLAM KHAN 
         Place: Mumbai              CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR        
               DIN: 00016438 

 

            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTES: 

1. The Register of members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 
from 10/08/2019 to 19/08/2019 (both days inclusive). 

 
2. A member entitled to attend and vote is also entitled to appoint proxy to attend and vote 

instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company.  Proxy in 
order to be effective must be received by the company not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total 
share capital of the Company. 

 
3. The instrument appointing the proxy (duly completed, stamped and signed) must be 

deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time 
fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the 
meeting, member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during the 
business hours of the Company, provided not less than 3 days written notice is given to 
the Company. 
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4 With effect from April 01, 2014, inter-alia, provisions of section 149 of Companies Act, 
2013, has been brought into force. In terms of the said section read with section 152(6) 
of the Act, the provisions of retirement by rotation are not applicable to Independent 
Directors.  

 
5 In terms of THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 

REGULATIONS, 2015 details of director retiring by rotation at the ensuing annual general 
meeting need to be attached in the Annexure.  

 
6  Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders holding shares in     

 physical form may file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s   
 Registrar and Transfer Agent. In respect of shares held in electronic/Demat form, the  
 nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository Participant. 

  
7 Electronic copy of the Notice convening the 14th AGM of the Company, Annual Report 

along with the Attendance Slip and Proxy Form are being sent to the members who have 
registered their email ids with the Company / Depository Participant(s). For members 
who have not registered their email ids, physical copies of the aforementioned documents 
are being sent in the permitted mode. 

 
8 Members who have not registered their email address so far, are requested to register 

their email ids for receiving all communications including Annual Report, Notices, etc., 
from the Company electronically. 

 
9 In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Resolutions for consideration at this 
AGM will be transacted through remote e-voting (facility to cast vote from a place other 
than the venue of the AGM) and also e-voting at the AGM venue, for which purpose the 
Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) have engaged the services of CDSL. The 
Board has appointed M/s. C. B Jain & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the 
Scrutinizer for this purpose. 

 
10 The e-voting period commences on August 16, 2019 (9 a.m. IST) and ends on August 18, 

2019 (5 p.m. IST). During this period, members holding shares either in physical or 
dematerialized form, as on cut-off date i.e. August 12, 2019 may cast their vote 
electronically. E-voting rights cannot be exercised by a proxy, though corporate and 
institutional shareholders shall be entitled to vote through their authorized 
representatives with proof of their authorization.  

 
11 The facility for e-voting will be available at the AGM venue to those Members who do not 

cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM. Members, who cast their votes by 
remote e-voting, may attend the AGM but will not be entitled to cast their votes once 
again. 

 
12 Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the Annual General 

Meeting. 
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13 Members/Proxies/Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slip enclosed 
to the annual report /notice for attending the meeting. 

 
14 Members are requested to intimate the Company of queries, if any, regarding these 

accounts / notice at least ten days before the Annual General Meeting to enable the 
Management to keep the information ready at the meeting. 

 
15 Members are requested to note that in case of transfers, deletion of name of deceased 

shareholder, transmission and transposition of names in respect of shares held in physical 
form, submission of photocopy of PAN Card of transferee(s), surviving holder(s), legal 
heirs(s) and joint holder(s) respectively, along with necessary document at the time of 
lodgment of request for transfer/ transmission / transposition, is mandatory. 

 
16 All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement shall 

be open for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal business 
hours (9.30 a.m. to 5.00 p.m.) on all working days except Sundays, up to and including the 
date of Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

 
17 Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the 

meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

 
18 In case of joint shareholders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher 

in the order of names will be entitled to vote. 
 

       By order of the Board of Directors 
For OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 

                                                                            
                                                               
                                                                                                                SD/-      
         Date:  29.07.2019                                     MOHAMMED ASLAM KHAN 
         Place: Mumbai              CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR        
               DIN: 00016438 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 
 
Item No.4: 
 
Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Ms. Rabia Khan, (DIN: 08355059), was appointed as an Additional Director in the category 
of Independent Director by the Board with effect from February 11, 2019. Pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Rabia Khan will hold office up to the date of the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a Notice in writing under the provisions of 
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member along with a requisite amount of deposit 
proposing the candidature of Ms. Rabia Khan for the Office of Independent Director, to be appointed 
as such under the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. In accordance with the 
provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act, appointment of an Independent Director 
requires approval of members.  
 
Ms. Rabia Khan, aged 45 years old, brings to the board rich financial expertise that includes extensive 
knowledge of the economics, financial and operational issues, and a deep understanding of 
accounting principles and financial reporting rules and regulations. As chairperson of the Audit 
committee, Dr. Rabia, amongst others, is responsible for, providing significant insight into the 
preparation of financial statements and knowledge of audit procedures.  
 
She nurtures a keen interest in designing and implementing policies and advocacy strategies about 
evaluation criteria of board, board diversity, governance, nomination and remuneration. Realizing 
the central role of communication and, because of her personal and particular interest in them, Dr. 
Rabia built skills in strategic communication and outreach, leading her to supervise stakeholders’ 
relationship committee. Dr Rabia’s special qualifications for serving on Octaware’s board of directors 
include extensive knowledge and expertise in financing, governance, communication, and blend of 
academic insights.  
 
Dr. Rabia holds a Ph.D. in Economics from the Aligarh Muslim University and developed research 
project in the area of econometrics and mathematical economics. Her major research focus is on 
studying structural adjustment program and food security in India. She has participated in several 
conferences sharing her learnings and knowledge. Dr Rabia is a passionate and absolutely loves 
teaching mathematics and science. 
 
The Board considers that her association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is 
desirable to continue to avail services of Ms. Rabia Khan as an Independent Director. Accordingly, the 
Board recommends the resolution, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company as an 
ordinary resolution.  
 
Ms. Rabia Khan fulfils the conditions specified in the Section 149(6) and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV, the rules made there under to be appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company.  
 
Ms. Rabia Khan does not hold any shares of the Company.  
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The terms and conditions of appointment of Ms. Rabia Khan, pursuant to the provisions of Schedule 
IV of the Act, shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office or Corporate Office of the Company 
between 10.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on any working day except Saturdays up to the date of this Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. 
 
Except Ms. Rabia Khan, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution 
set out at Item No. 4. 
 

       By order of the Board of Directors 
For OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 

                                                                            
                                                               
                                                                                                                SD/-      
 Date:  29.07.2019                                       MOHAMMED ASLAM KHAN 
 Place: Mumbai                             CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR        
               DIN: 00016438 
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ANNEXURE 

 
Details of Director seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (PURSUANT 
TO REGULATION 36(3) of THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name of Director Mr. Mohammed Siraj Moinuddin 
Gunwan 

Date of Birth 11/08/1973 
Date of Appointment 01/10/2009 
Expertise in Specific Functional Area Technology engineering, 

marketing, sales and management 
Qualifications Engineering graduate 

(Electronics), Masters from 
Sikkim Manipal University 

Directors in other public limited companies NIL 

Other positions NIL 
Membership of committees in other public limited 
companies 

NIL 

Inter relationship NIL 

Shares held in the company 6,45,282 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19 
 
 
To, 
The Members, 
OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
During the year under review, performance of the company as under: 
 

Statement of Standalone Audited Results for the Year ended 31.03.2019 
   

(Rs. In Lakhs.) 

Sr. 
No Particulars 

Year Ended Results 

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Audited Audited  
 

 
 

    

I  Revenue from operations  265.28 91.53 

II Other Income 11.49 0.01   
 

 

III Total Revenue (I+II) 276.77 91.54 

IV Expenses  
 

 
(a) Cost of materials consumed 92.77 9.36  
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade - -  
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, 
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade - -  
(d) Employee benefits expense 98.07 13.65  
(e) Finance Costs - -  
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 10.99 9.60  
(g) Other expenses  53.78 42.55  
Total Expenses 255.61 75.16   

 
 

V Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and 
extraordinary items and tax  (III-IV) 

21.16 16.38 

  
 

 

VI Exceptional items  - -   
 

 

VII Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and 
tax  (V-VI) 

21.16 16.38 
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VIII Extraordinary Items  

- - 

 
  

 

IX Profit before tax (VII-VIII) 21.16 16.38   
 

 

X Tax Expenses  
 

(a) Current Tax 10.65 3.60 

(b) Deferred Tax -1.47 -0.79   
 

 

XI Profit / (Loss) for the period from 
continuing operations (IX-X) 

11.98  13.57 

  
 

 

XII Profit/ (Loss) from discontinuing 
operations  

- - 

XIII Tax Expenses of discontinuing operations - - 

XIV Profit/ (Loss) from discontinuing 
operations (after tax) (XII-XIII) 

- - 

  
 

 

XV Profit/ (Loss) for the period (XI+XIV 11.98 13.57   
 

 

XVI i. Earning per share(before extraordinary 
items) (of Rs 10 each) (not annualised) 

- 
 

 
(a) Basic 0.33 0.38  
(b) Diluted 0.33  0.38   

  
 

 
ii. Earning per share(after extraordinary 
items) (of Rs 10 each) (not annualised) 

 
 

 
(a) Basic 0.33  0.38   
(b) Diluted 0.33  0.38   

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                             ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 
 _______________________________________________________ 
 

 
12 

 
 

Statement of Consolidated Audited Results for the Year ended 31.03.2019   
(Rs. In Lakhs.)  

Particulars 

Year Ended Results 

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Audited Audited  
 

  

    

I Revenue from operations  1076.97 1135.04 

II Other Income 18.16 -5.74   
 

 

III Total Revenue (I+II) 1095.13 1129.30 

IV Expenses  
 

 
(a) Cost of materials consumed 92.76 9.36  
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade - -  
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, 
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade - -  
(d) Employee benefits expense 291.98 267.18  
(e) Finance Costs - -  
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 25.33 34.86  
(g) Other expenses  594.56 573.04  
Total Expenses 1004.63 884.44   

 
 

V Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and 
extraordinary items and tax  (III-IV) 

           90.5                                        
244.86   

 
 

VI Exceptional items  - -   
 

 

VII Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and 
tax  (V-VI) 

90.5 244.86 

  
 

 

VIII Extraordinary Items  0.95 0.78  
  

 

IX Profit before tax (VII-VIII) 89.55 244.08   
 

 

X Tax Expenses  
 

(a) Current Tax 55.70 31.70 

(b) Deferred Tax -23.83 -25.44   
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XI Profit / (Loss) for the period from 
continuing operations (IX-X) 

57.68 238.61 

  
 

 

XII Profit/ (Loss) from discontinuing 
operations  

- - 

XIII Tax Expenses of discontinuing operations - - 

XIV Profit/ (Loss) from discontinuing 
operations (after tax) (XII-XIII) 

- - 

  
 

 

XV Profit/ (Loss) for the period (XI+XIV 57.68 238.61   
 

 

XVI i. Earning per share(before extraordinary 
items) (of Rs 10 each) (not annualised) 

 
 

 
(a) Basic 1.63 6.65  
(b) Diluted 1.63 6.65  

  
 

 
ii. Earning per share(after extraordinary 
items) (of Rs 10 each) (not annualised) 

 
 

 
(a) Basic 1.63 6.65  
(b) Diluted 1.63 6.65 

 
 
Review of Operations: 
 
Total Consolidated Income for the year was Rs. 1095.13 Lacs as against last year’s Rs 1134.39 Lacs. 
Further during the year company resulting in net profit of Rs. 57.68 Lacs as against previous year 
profit of Rs. 238.61 Lacs 
 
Your Directors are taking optimum efforts to increase the profits, through aggressive sales campaign. 
 
Future Outlook 
 
Our cliental base constitutes customers of diverse sectors encompassing various industries like 
Healthcare, Education, Telecom, Oil & Gas, Real Estate & Construction, Banking & Financial Services 
and Manufacturing sectors. Our strategy is to seek new customers and at the same time secure 
additional engagements from existing customers by providing high quality services and cross-selling 
new services. Our quality standards, unflinching efforts for punctual order completions and our 
unmatched overall service have resulted in significant recurring revenue from existing customers 
and also enabled us to garner clients who are some of the leading banking, financial, healthcare, 
manufacturing, education and telecommunication names in India and abroad. We believe that our 
current capabilities and plans for the future ensure that we are well positioned to attract and develop 
new customer relationships. Business from new customers is accepted upon consideration of factors 
such as alignment of capabilities and customer expectation, volume of business and future business, 
potential for close partnership with long-term association, and an analysis of upfront costs.  



                             ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 
 _______________________________________________________ 
 

 
14 

The following table illustrates the concentration of our revenues among our top customers (₹ in 
lakhs). Percentage indicates % of total revenue. 

  
 
 
            FY 2019 

 
 
 
       FY 2018 

 
 
 
            FY 2017 

                             
Top 5 
customers  

   229.21 86.40 68.57 74.92%     67.78  91.74% 

Top 10 
customers  

   258.82 97.56 88.42 96.60%     73.49  99.47% 

 
Developed a long-standing relationship with our clients which include companies like, Microsoft, 
Pitney Bowes, Copernicus Consulting, Integrated Networks, VOIP Connection, Sai Hospital, Essel 
Propack and Tech Mahindra among others. Further, we continuously endeavour to increase our 
cliental base and have a dedicated marketing team at several of our Indian and overseas offices for 
client acquisition. 
 
Management discussion and Analysis Report 
 
Business Overview  
 
The company is a software development, enterprise solution and consulting firm engaged in the 
business of providing a range of Information Technology (“IT”) solutions to companies across sectors 
such as Healthcare, Education, Telecom, Oil & Gas, Real Estate & Construction, Banking & Financial 
Services and Manufacturing sectors. The company design, develop and maintain software systems 
and solutions, creates new applications and enhances the functionality of the customers’ existing 
software products. The company endeavour to bring together creativity and knowledge with positive 
business strategy to furnish the requirements of diverse clients with an inclusive range of products 
and services which are comprehensive and cost-effective so that the client can focus on their core-
competencies to improve or expand their businesses. The company delivers services across all stages 
of the product life-cycle, which enables us to work with a wide-range of customers and allow the 
company to develop, enhance and deploy customers’ software products. The various services offered 
by the company are Software Development Services, Enterprise Portal, ERP and CRM 
Implementation, Consulting Services, Mobile Solutions, RFID Solutions, Cloud and IT Infrastructure 
Services and Geospatial Services. The comprehensive suite of service offerings allows the company 
to attract new customers and expand existing customer relationships. The company provide an array 
of products and solutions like PowerERM – Employee Relationship Management, Hospice – 
Healthcare Solution and iOnAsset – Asset Tracking & Management System, RealWin – Real Estate 
CRM Solution, Life2Care – Patient Relationship Management, eDocNet – Enterprise Content and 
Document Management Solution and eQuire – Office Automation and eProcurement Management 
Solution which help our clients in strategising their business objectives. As an offshore outsourcing 
company, the company have various offshore development centres in India. Currently, Octaware has 
2 offices in India, including registered office and a SEZ office in Mumbai. The company is promoted 
by Mr. Aslam Khan and Mr. Sajid Hameed who individually have approximate 20 years of experience. 
Having worked with technology companies like TCS, Microsoft, Citibank and AskMe Inc., Mr. Aslam 
Khan started Octaware in 2005 pooling all his experience. He was aided by Mr. Sajid Hameed who has 
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rich experience in setting up business, developing markets, managing customers and handling overall 
businesses. In the year 2006, The company acquired 2 large customers in US and the growth 
continued with our establishing partner relationships in Qatar in 2007, allowing the company to offer 
specialised solution for the Middle East market. Later in 2008, The company introduced solutions for 
various industries like healthcare, professional services and real-estate industry by investing in in-
house product development.  
 
Competition 
 
The market for IT Products and Services is both, highly competitive and rapidly evolving. It has 
evolved into a consolidated global industry and the company face competition both in the domestic 
as well as the export markets. The company primarily face competition from the small and large 
Indian IT services companies as well as international technology services companies which offer 
broad-based services, offshore captive centres of global corporations and technology firms. The 
company anticipate this competition to continue to grow as the demand for these services increases 
and expect additional companies to enter the Indian market. The company expect that further 
competition will increase and potentially include firms in countries with lower personnel costs than 
those prevailing in India.  
Further, Clients that presently outsource a significant proportion of their IT service requirements to 
vendors in India may seek to reduce their dependence on one country and outsource work to other 
offshore destinations such as China, Russia and Eastern European countries. Also, many countries 
have the advantage of being located in proximity to the company’s main export markets of American 
and European countries. The company also face competition from other countries mainly in US and 
European countries that have advanced technology and ability to cater to large scale businesses in 
different parts of the world. There are number of competitors offering products and services similar 
to the company. Octaware believe the principal elements of competition in IT industry are price, 
timely delivery and reliability and most importantly pace in keeping up with the required changing 
technology in the industry. The company has the belief that company’s cost effective and integrated 
offerings, focus on customer satisfaction and reliability combined with quality consciousness 
provides company with competitive advantage in many of products. 
 
 
Share Capital 
 
During the year under review, Authorised Share Capital remained same as earlier i.e. 4,20,00,000. 
 
During the year, the paid-up capital of the company also remained at 3,59,05,700. 
 
Internal Control System and their Adequacy 

 
The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss, 
unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded 
and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards 
for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal 
auditor of the company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance 
with policy adopted by the company.  
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The Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with 
its size and nature of its business. 
 
 
Risk Management  

 
The Company has framed a sound Risk Management Policy to identify and evaluate business risks 
and opportunities and the same has become integral part of Company’s day to day operations. The 
key business risks identified by the Company are as follows viz. Industry Risk, Management and 
Operations Risk, Market Risk, Government Policy risk, Liquidity risk, and Systems risk. The Company 
has in place adequate mitigation plans for the aforesaid risks.    
 
Subsidiary Companies: 
 
The company has three subsidiary companies. One is in India that is “Octaware Informarion 
Technologies Pvt Limited” and Other two are in Dubai and Qatar namely “Octaware Gulf FZE” and 
“Octaware Gulf (QFC Branch)”.  
 
Dividend: 
 
Your Directors do not recommend dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2019. 
 
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 
 
Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared and paid last year, the provisions of Section 
125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply. 
 
Number of Meetings of the Board 
 
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company/business policy and strategy 
apart from other Board business. 
The Board met Five (5) times in financial year 2018-19 i.e. on 28th May, 2018, 20th July, 2018, 03rd 
September, 2018, 13th November, 2018, 11th February, 2019. 
 
Committee of the Board:  
 
The Company’s Board has the following committees:  
 
1. Audit Committee  
 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
 
3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee  
 
As required, the above committees consist of independent directors in majority. 
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors 
confirm that: 
 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019, the applicable 

accounting standards read with requirements set out under schedule III to the Act, have been 

followed and there are no material departures from the same; 

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and of the profit of the Company for 

the year ended on that date; 

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis; 

e) the Directors have laid down internal controls to be followed by the Company and that such 

internal controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and 

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 
Public Deposits 
 
During the year under review, the company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of 
Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force). 
 
Risk Management 
 
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key 
business objectives. Major risks identified by the business and functions are systematically addressed 
through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. These are discussed at the meeting of the Board of 
Directors of the Company. 
 
The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the 
size and complexity of its operations. The Board of Directors reviews adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control environment and monitors the implement of auditors’ 
recommendations. 
 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel  
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The composition of Board of Directors and details of Key Managerial Personnel for the F.Y. 2018-19 
are as follows: 
 

Sr. 
No 

Name of the Person Category With effect from and Tenure 

1 Mohammed Aslam Khan Chairman and Managing 
Director 

November 9, 2018-For a period 
of 3 years 

2 Sajid Iqbal Abdul Hameed Whole Time Director, CFO November 9, 2018-For a period 
of 3 years 

3 Mohammed Siraj Gunwan Whole Time Director November 9, 2018-For a period 
of 3 years 

4 Shariq Nisar Independent Director Resigned on January 31, 2019 
5 Krishnan Narayanan Independent Director November 9, 2015-For a period 

of 5 years 
6 Usha Mishra Independent Director March 29, 2018- For a period of 

5 years 
7 Rabia Khan Additional Director 

(Independent) 
February 11, 2019- For a 
period of 5 years 

8 Muzammil Memon Company Secretary November 20, 2015 
 
Mr. Shariq Nisar resigned from the post of Independent Director on January 31, 2019 and Ms. Rabia 
Khan was appointed as Additional Director (Independent) w.e.f. 11th February, 2019 
 
Particulars of Employees 
 
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, 
will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the reports and accounts are being 
sent to the members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars 
which is available for inspection by the members at the Registered office of the company during 
business hours on working days of the company up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. If 
any member is interested in inspecting the same, such member may write to the company secretary 
in advance. 
 
Auditors’ Appointment  
 
M/s. MVK Associates, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors, holds office till the conclusion of 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your Board recommends M/s. MVK Associates, Chartered 
Accountants appointment as Statutory Auditors from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting. 
  
Pursuant to the provision of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 the Company has appointed M/s. Ashok K. Surana & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
to undertake the Internal Audit of the Company for the F.Y. 2018-19. There stood no adverse finding 
& reporting by the Internal Auditor in the Internal Audit Report for the year ended 31st March, 2019. 
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Comments on Auditors Report 
 
The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors' Report are self–explanatory and do not 
call for any further comments. The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, reservation 
or adverse remark or disclaimers. The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud in 
the year under review. 
 
Particulars of Loan given, Investment made, Guarantees given and Securities Provided 
(Section 186) 
 
There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable. 
 
Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties referred to in Section 188(1) 
 
All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with 
related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The particulars 
of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1), as prescribed in Form 
AOC - 2 of the rules prescribed under Chapter IX relating to Accounts of Companies under the 
Companies Act, 2013, is appended as Annexure I. 
 
Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
 
There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of the report.  
 
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
 
The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and outgo appear as separate items in the notes 
to the Accounts. Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the other particulars 
relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption stipulated in the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 are not applicable. 

Extract of Annual Return                                      

 
The extract of Annual Return, in format MGT -9, for the Financial Year 2018-19 has been enclosed 
with this report in Annexure II. 
 
Secretarial Auditor & Report 
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The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. C. B. Jain & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretary to conduct the Secretarial Audit and their Report on Company’s Secretarial Audit is 
appended to this Report as Annexure III. 
 
 
Corporate Social Responsibility 
 
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
 
Corporate Governance Disclosure 
 
As per Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations), 2015, a separate Section on Corporate Governance on corporate governance practices 
followed by the Company an integral part of this Report. The Report has been attached in Annexure 
IV. 
 
Statement on declaration given by independent directors under section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 
 
As required under provisions of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, all Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they meet the 
requisite criteria of independence. 
 
Disclosure under the sexual harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 
 
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at its workplace. The Company has adopted 
an Anti-harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaint Committee are set 
up to redress complaints received regularly and are monitored by women line supervisors who 
directly report to the Chairman & Managing Director. All female employees are covered under the 
policy. 
 
Secretarial Standards 
 
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India on Board meetings and Annual General Meetings. 
 
Cost Records and Cost audit 
 
Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of 
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities carried out 
by the Company. 
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                                                                                                 By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Octaware Technologies Limited 

 
 

Sd/- 
                Mohammed Aslam Khan 

Place: Mumbai       Chairman & Managing Director 
Date:  29-05-2019      DIN No:00016438 
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                                                               ANNEXURE I 

 
                                                                                Form No. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 
transactions under third proviso is given below: 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NOT APPLICABLE 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Nil 
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Nil 
c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions Nil 
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including 

the value, if any 
Nil 

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

Nil 

f) date(s) of approval by the Board Nil 
g) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil 
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as 

required under first proviso to section 188 
Nil 

 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 
 

Sr
. 
N
o. 

Particulars  Details  

a) Name(s) of the 
Related Party  

Sajid 
Iqbal 
Abdul 
Hameed 

Mr. 
Moham
med 
Aslam 
Khan 

Mr. 
Moham
med 
Siraj 
Gunwan 

Mrs. 
Rehana 
Khan  

Octawar
e Gulf 
FZE 

Octaware 
Gulf QFC 

Octaware 
Information 
Technologies 
Private 
Limited 

b) Nature of 
relationship 

Director Director Director Wife of 
Mr. 
Aslam 
Khan 

Subsidia
ry 
compan
y 

Subsidiary 
company 

Subsidiary 
company 

c) Nature of 
contracts/arra
ngements/tra
nsactions 

Consulta
nt Fees 

Consulta
nt Fees 

Consulta
nt Fees 

Office 
Rent 
Payment 

Services Services Services 
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d) Duration of 
the contracts / 
arrangements
/transactions 

01.04.20
18 to 
31.03.20
19 

01.04.20
18 to 
31.03.20
19 

01.04.20
18 to 
31.03.20
19 

01.04.20
18 to 
31.03.20
19 

01.04.20
18 to 
31.03.20
19 

01.04.2018 
to 
31.03.2019 

01.04.2018 to 
31.03.2019 

e) Salient terms 
of the 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or 
transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

NIL NIL NIL Lease 
rent of 
Rs. 
6,00,000
/- 

NIL NIL NIL 

f) date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 
any 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

g) Amount paid 
as advances, if 
any: 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL Nil 

 
                                                                     By Order of the Board of Directors 

                                                                                          For Octaware Technologies Limited 
 
 

Sd/- 
                Mohammed Aslam Khan 

Place: Mumbai       Chairman & Managing Director 
Date:  29-05-2019      DIN No: 00016438 
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        ANNEXURE II 
 

Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31S T 
MARCH, 2019 

 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]  
 

 

I.REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 

i.  CIN 

 

U72200MH2005PLC153539 

ii.  Registration Date 

 

26-05-2005 

iii.  Name of the Company 
 

Octaware Technologies Limited 

iv.  Category / Sub-Category of the Company 

 

Listed Public Limited Company 

v.  Address of the Registered office and contact 
details 

 

204, Timmy Arcade, Makwana Road, Marol, 
Off. Kurla Andheri Road, Mumbai – 400 059 

vi.  Whether listed company 

 

Yes 

vii.  Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any 

 

N. A.  

 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

 

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated:- 
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Sr. 

No. 

Name and Description of main 

products / services 

NIC Code of 

the Product/ 

service 

% to total turnover of the 

company 

1 Information Technology Services. 62013 100% 

 

 

 

 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 

Sr. No. Name And 

Address Of 

The 

Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 

Subsidiary 

/Associate 

% of 

shares 

held 

Applicable 

Section 

1.  Octaware 
Information 

Technologies 

Pvt Ltd, 204, 
Timmy 

Arcade, 

Makwana Rd, 
Marol, 

Andheri East, 

Mumbai-

400059 

U72300MH2013PTC248824 Subsidiary 99.373% ------------- 

2.  Octaware Gulf 

FZE, P O Box 

39349, RAK 

Free Trade 
Zone, Ras Al 

Khaimah, 

UAE 

RAKFTZA-FZE-4009956 Subsidiary 100% __________ 

3.  Octaware Gulf 
(QFC 

Branch),2nd 

Floor, Block 
No 2, Town 

Centre 

QFC No.00328 Subsidiary 100% __________ 
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Building. Bin 

Omran P. O. 
Box No. – 

10161, 

Doha, Qatar. 

4.  Transpact 
Enterprises 

Pvt. Ltd 

U33130MH2013PLC243247 Associate 24.77% --------------- 

 

 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

 

i. Category-wise Share Holding Refer shareholding pattern 

 

Category of 

Shareholders 
No. of Shares held at the 

beginning of the year 

No. of Shares held at the end 

of the year 

% 

Change 

during 

the 

year 

 Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

 

A. Promoter          

1) Indian          

a) Individual/ 

HUF 

         

b) Central 
Govt 

         

c) State 

Govt(s) 
         

d) Bodies Corp          

e) Banks / FI          

f) Directors 17300

24 

       - 173002

4 

48.18% 1730

024 

       - 173002

4 

48.18

% 

0 

 

Sub-

total(A)(1):- 

17300

24 

       - 173002

4 

48.18% 1730

024 

       - 173002

4 

48.18

% 

0 

2) Foreign          

g) NRIs-

Individuals 
         

h) Other-

Individuals 
         

i) Bodies Corp.          

j) Banks / FI          

k) Any 

Other…. 
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Sub-total 
(A)(2):- 

         

B. Public 

Shareholdin

g 

         

1. Institutions          

a) Mutual 

Funds 
         

b) Banks / FI          

c) Central 

Govt 
         

d) State 
Govt(s) 

         

e) Venture 

Capital 
Funds 

         

f) Insurance 

Companies 
         

g) FIIs          

h) Foreign 

Venture 
Capital 

Funds 

         

i) Others 
(specify) 

         

 

Sub-total 

(B)(1) 

         

2. Non 

Institutions 

         

a) Bodies 

Corp. 

(i) Indian 
(ii) Overseas 

         

b) Individuals 

 

(i) Individual 
shareholders 

holding 

nominal share 
capital upto 

Rs. 2 lakhs 

 

(ii) Individual 
shareholders 

 

 

 

2,30,6

00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

78,100 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3,08,70

0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.60% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1,99,

500 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

62,800 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2,62,30

0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.31

% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.29

% 
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holding 

nominal share 
capital in 

excess of Rs 2 

lakhs 

8,26,3

76 

 

51,300 8,77,67

6 

 

24.44% 

 

6,26,

376 

 

51,300 6,77,67

6 

18.87

% 

 

5.57

% 

c) Others(Spec
ify) 

         

Bodies 

Corporate 
4,41,6

00 

 4,41,60

0 

12.30% 6960

00 

 696000 19.38

% 

7.08

% 

Foreign 

Individuals 
 98,459 98,459 2.74 %  98,459 98,459 2.74 

% 

0 

NRI (Repat 

&Non Repat) 
85,200 44,100 1,29,31

1 

3.61% 85,00

0 

41,111 1,26,11

1 

3.52

% 

0.09

% 

Hindu 

Undivided Firm 
4,800  4,800 0.13% ---  --- --- -- 

 

Sub-total 
(B)(2) 

 

15,88,

576 

 

2,71,95

9 

 

186054

6 

 

51.82% 

 

16,06

,876 

 

2,53,6

70 

 

18,60,5

46 

 

51.82

% 

 

- 

 

Total Public 

Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ 

(B)(2) 

         

C. Shares held 

by Custodian 
for GDRs & 

ADRs 

         

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) 

33,18,

600 

2,71,95

9 

35,90,5

70 

100% 33,36

,900 

2,53,6

70 

35,90,5

70 

100% 0 

 

ii.Shareholding of Promoters (Annexure I) 

 

Sr. 

No 

Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 

year 

 

  No. of 
Shar es 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

% change 
in 

shareholdin

g during 

the year 

- Mohammed 
Aslam Khan 

10,84,
742 

30.21 ------------ 10,84,
742 

30.21 ----------- 0 

 Sajid Iqbal 

Abdul Hameed 

6,45,2
82 

17.97 ------------ 6,45,2
82 

17.97 ------------ 0 
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1 

iii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) (Annexure II) 

 

Sr. 

no 

 Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

  No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company 

1. Mohammed Aslam Khan     

 At the beginning of the year 

 

10,84,742 30.21% 10,84,742 30.21% 

 Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Promoters Shareholding 

during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase 

/ decrease (e.g. allotment / 

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 

etc.): 
Offer for sale in Initial Public 

Offering on 30/03/2017 

0 0 0 0 

 At the End of the year 

 

10,84,742 30.21% 10,84,742 30.21% 

2. Sajid Iqbal Abdul Hameed     

 At the beginning of the year 

 

6,45,282 17.97% 6,45,282 17.97% 

 Date wise Increase / Decrease 

in Promoters Shareholding 
during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase 

/ decrease (e.g. allotment / 
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 

etc): 

Offer for sale in Initial Public 
Offering on 30/03/2017 

0 0 0 0 

 At the End of the year 

 

6,45,282 17.97% 6,45,282 17.97% 
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i.Shareholding Pattern of Top ten Shareholders (Annexure I) 

 

Sr. 

No 

Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 

year 

 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Share

s of 

the 
comp

any 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

% chan ge 
in share 

holdi ng 

durin g the 

year 

1 Mohammed 

Aslam Khan 

10,84,

742 

30.2

1% 

------------ 10,84,

742 

30.21% ----------- 0 

2 Sajid Iqbal 

Abdul Hameed 

6,45,2

82 

17.9

7% 

 6,45,2

82 

17.97%  0 

3 Mohammed 

Siraj Gunwan 

 

2.63,8

57 

7.34

% 

 2.63,8

57 

7.34%  0 

4 Aryaman 

Capital 

Markets 

Limited 

1,42,4

00 

3.97

% 

 2,28,8

00 

6.37%  2.4% 

5 Shahnawaz 

Shaikh 

2,03,3

48 

5.66

% 

 2,03,3

48 

5.66%  0 

6 Shri Ravindra 

Media 

Ventures 

1,48,8

00 

4.14

% 

 1,60,0

00 

4.46%  0.32% 

7 Overskud 

Multi Asset 

Management 

Private Limited 

- - - 18240

0 

5.07%  5.07% 

8 Mirza Haroon 

Baig 

1,33,5

71 

3.72

% 

 1,33,5

71 

3.72%  0 

9 

 

 

Hadicon 

Ventures 

Private Limited 

27,200 0.76

% 

 1,04,0

00 

2.90%  2.14% 

10 Ahmed Al 

Akeel 

-- -- -- 39,20

0 

1.09%  1.09% 
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i.Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (Annexure I) 
 

Sr. 

No 

Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 

year 

 

  No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 
the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 
encumbered 

to total 

shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 
the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 
encumbered 

to total 

shares 

% change 

in share 
holding 

during the 

year 

- Mohammed 

Aslam Khan 

(CMD) 

10,84,

742 

30.21% ------------ 10,84,

742 

30.21% ----------- 0 

 Sajid Iqbal 

Abdul Hameed 

(WTD and 

CFO) 

6,45,2

82 

17.97%  6,45,2

82 

17.97%  0 

 Mohammed 

Siraj Gunwan 

(WTD) 

 

2.63,8

57 

7.34%  2.63,8

57 

7.34%  0 

 Muzammil 

Memon 

(Company 

Secretary) 

1500 0.04%  1500 0.04%  0 

 

 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 

 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

 

 Secured Loans 

excluding 

deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the 

beginning of the financial 

year 
 

i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not paid 

iii) Interest accrued but not 

None None None None 

 
Total (i+ii+iii) 

None None None None 
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Change in Indebtedness 

during the financial year 

 -  Addition 

 -  Reduction 

    

 

Net Change 

None None None None 

Indebtedness  at the 

end  of the financial year 

 

i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not paid 

iii) Interest accrued but not 

due 

    

 

Total (i+ii+iii) 

None None None None 

 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager (Input from finance 

team)  

 

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Total 

Amount 

1.  Gross salary 

 
Mohamm

ed Aslam 

Khan 

(CMD) 

Sajid 

Iqbal 

Abdul 

Hamee

d 

(WTD) 

Moha

mmed 

Siraj 

Gunw

an(W

TD) 

Total 

Amount 

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 

1961 

 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961 

 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 

17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 

 

900,000/- Nil 5,40,0

00 

14,40,000 

2.  Stock Option 

 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 

3.  Sweat Equity 

 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 

4.  Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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-   as % of profit 

-   others, specify… 

 

5.  Others, please specify 

  Consulting fees 

6,00,000 NIL 4,50,0

00 

10,50,000 

6.  Total (A) 

 
15,00,000 NIL 9,90,0

00 

24,90,000 

 Ceiling as per the Act 

 
    

 

 

B. Remuneration to other directors:  

 

Sl. 

No. 

Particulars of 

Remuneration 

                  Name of Directors                                                        Total 

  Shariq 

Nisar 

Krishnan 

Narayana

n 

Usha 

Mishra 

 

 Independent Directors 

· Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 

· Commission 

· Others, please specify 

 

 

2500 

 

2500 

 

2500 

 

7500 

 

 Total (1) 2500 2500 2500 7500 

 Other Non-Executive 

Directors 
· Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 

· Commission 

· Others, please specify  

 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 Total (B)=(1+2) 2500 2500 2500 7500 

 Total Managerial 

Remuneration 
Nil Nil Nil Nil  

 Overall Ceiling as per the 

Act 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD /Manager /WTD 

 

Sl. 

no. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of KMPs 

  Sajid Iqbal 

Abdul 

Hameed 

(CFO) 

Muzammil 

Memon 

(CS) 

Total 

1.  Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) 

of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

 
(b) Value of perquisites 

u/s 

17(2) Income-tax 

Act, 1961 

 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 

17(3) Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

Nil 3,44,121 3,44,121 

2.  Stock Option Nil Nil Nil 

3.  Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil 

4.  Commission 

-   as % of profit 

- others, specify… 

Nil Nil Nil 

5.  Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil 

6.  Total - 3,44,121 3,44,121 

 

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

 

Type Section of 

the 

companies 

Act 

Brief 

description 

Details of 

Penalty/  

Punishment/  

Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority [RD 

/NCLT/Court] 

Appeal 

made. If 

any(give 

details) 

A. Company 

Penalty ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 

Punishment ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 

Compounding ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 

B. Directors 

Penalty ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
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Punishment ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 

Compounding ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 

C. Other Officers in Default 

Penalty ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 

Punishment ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 

Compounding ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 

                                                                                                 
     By Order of the Board of Directors 

           For Octaware Technologies Limited 
 
 

Sd/- 
                Mohammed Aslam Khan 

Place: Mumbai       Chairman & Managing Director 
Date:  29-05-2019      DIN No:00016438 
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ANNEXURE III 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019 
 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (hereinafter called 
the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me with a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in 
my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended 
on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of: 

 

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

(ii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iii)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment; 

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 (a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009; 

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; 

 (c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
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Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 (d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors 
and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings along with the agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
Majority decision is carried through. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

 

The following are the qualifications as per our audit findings: NIL 

 
 

Mr. Chirag Jain 
(Practicing Company Secretary) 

 
 
 

                       For C. B. JAIN & ASSOCIATES., 
Membership No. A37337 

C.P.No. 13973 
Place: Mumbai   
Date: 09/07/2019 
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‘Annexure A’ 

The members, 

OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that 

the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedure on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

Mr. Chirag Jain 
(Practicing Company Secretary) 

 
 

 
                      For C. B. JAIN & ASSOCIATES., 

Membership No. A37337 
C.P.No. 13973 

Place: Mumbai   
Date: 09/07/2019 
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ANNEXURE IV 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
A.  MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance: 
 

 The Company’s purpose is business and to maximize long-term shareholder value by selling 
its goods and services. Therefore, our Corporate Governance processes are directed at 
ensuring that Company’s actions, assets and agents are directed to achieving this purpose 
while complying with the Code of Governance and the Company’s own policies and 
expectations and covers aspects such as ethical conduct, health, safety and the environment; 
control and finance; commitment to employees; and relationships.  

 
Company’s corporate governance conforms to regulatory and legal requirements, such as the 
terms of Listing Agreements with Stock Exchanges. In addition, it incorporates several 
practices aimed at a high level of business ethics, effective supervision and enhancement of 
value for all stakeholders. The Board lays emphasis on integrity and accountability. 

 
Key aspects of the Company’s Governance Processes are: 

 
 Clear statements of Board Processes and Board Executive linkage. 
 
 Disclosure, accountability, transparency, adequate systems and procedures to monitor the 

state of affairs of the Company to enable the Board in effectively discharging its 
responsibilities to the stakeholders of the Company. 

 
 Identification and management of key risks to delivery of performance of the Company. 
 

2. Board of Directors: 
 The Management of your Company is entrusted to the Managing Director. 
 
 Your Board of Directors closely monitors the performance of the Company and its 
Management, accord approvals and reviews strategies and, determines the remuneration of 
the management based on its performance. Your Board ensures legal and ethical conduct and 
high quality financial reporting. It holds itself accountable to the shareholders as well as other 
stakeholders for the long-term health of the Company. 

 
(a) Composition & Category of Directors 

Category Number of Directors % 
Non-Executive and Independent Directors  03 50 
Other Non-Executive Directors including the 
Chairman 

NIL NIL 

Executive Director (Managing Director & Whole 
Time Director) 

03 50 

Total 06 100.00 
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 As of the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Board of Directors had 6 (six) members that 

included two-woman director.  The Board comprises of 3 (three)-Executive Directors, Mr. 
Aslam Khan, Chairman and Managing Director, Mr. Sajid Iqbal Abdul Hameed and Mr. 
Mohammed Siraj Gunwan, Whole Time Directors. 

 
The Non-Executive Independent Directors includes Ms. Rabia Khan, Ms. Usha Mishra and 
Mr. Krishnan Narayanan. 
 
Accordingly, the numbers of independent directors or numbers of non-executive directors 
are in agreement with the numbers stipulated by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
(b) Number of Board Meetings held, dates on which held and Attendance of each 

Director at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting : 
   
(I) Board Meetings held during the Year: 5 

 
Dates on which 
Board Meetings 

were held 

Total Strength of Board   No. of Directors 
Present 

28-05-2018 06 2 
20-07-2018 06 2 
03-09-2018 06 3 
13-11-2018 06 2 
11-02-2019 06 2 

  
(II) Attendance of Directors at Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting: 

 

Name of 
the person                  

/ Date of 
BM 

Mohammed 
Aslam 
Khan 

Sajid 
Iqbal 
Abdul 

Hameed 

Mohammed 
Siraj 

Gunwan 

Shariq 
Nisar 

(Resigned 
on 

31.01.2019) 

Krishnan 
Narayanan 

Usha 
Mishra 

 

Rabia Khan  
(Appointed 
on 
11.02.2019) 

28.05.2018 PRESENT ABSENT PRESENT ABSENT ABSENT ABSENT NA 

20.07.2018 PRESENT ABSENT ABSENT ABSENT PRESENT PRESENT NA 

03.09.2018 PRESENT ABSENT ABSENT PRESENT ABSENT ABSENT NA 

13.11.2018 PRESENT ABSENT PRESENT ABSENT ABSENT ABSENT NA 

11.02.2019 PRESENT PRESENT ABSENT NA ABSENT ABSENT NA 

Total  
Board 
Meeting 
Attendance 5 1 2 1 1 

 
 
 

1 

 
 
 

NA 
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Date of 
AGM 

Mohammed 
Aslam 
Khan 

Sajid 
Iqbal 
Abdul 

Hameed 

Mohammed 
Siraj 

Gunwan 

Shariq 
Nisar 

(Resigned 
on 

31.01.2019) 

Krishnan 
Narayanan 

Usha 
Mishra 

 

Rabia Khan  
(Appointed 

on 
11.02.2019) 

27.09.2018 PRESENT ABSENT PRESENT ABSENT ABSENT ABSENT ABSENT 

 
 

(III) EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING ATTENDANCE: NOT APPLICABLE 
 

(c) Number of other Boards or Board Committees in which the Director is a 
Director/Member/Chairperson 

  
Name of the 
Director(s) 

Number of other 
Companies in which 
Director (including 
Alternate/Nominee 

Director) 

Number of Committees (other than 
OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES 

LIMITED) in which Chairman / 
Member 

Chairman Member 
Mr. Mohammed 
Aslam Khan 

04 NIL NIL 

Mr. Sajid Iqbal 
Abdul Hameed 

01 NIL  NIL 

Mr. Mohammed 
Siraj Gunwan 

01 NIL NIL 

Mr. Krishnan 
Narayanan 

03 NIL NIL 

Ms. Usha Mishra NIL NIL NIL 
 

(d) Directors Profile: 
 A brief profile of all the Directors on the Board is given herein below: 

 
1. Mohammed Aslam Khan, Promoter, Chairman and Managing Director 
Mr. Aslam Khan, aged 43 years, is the Chairman & Managing Director of our Company. He 
is the promoter of our company. He has completed his Bachelor of Engineering 
(Electronics) from Mumbai University. Mr. Aslam Khan also studied at Harvard Business 
School, MIT's Sloan School of Management and Said Business School of Oxford University 
where he was awarded executive certificates in Strategic Marketing and Finance 
Programme and has participated in the Advance Management Programme from the 
prestigious Indian Institute of Management, Kolkata in the year 2011. Mr. Aslam Khan has 
a rich experience of more than two decade in IT Industry, he has worked for many top 
MNC’s like Microsoft, Citibank NA, Askme.com, TCS. Mr, Aslam Khan has worked around 
various parts of the globe and has a strong grip on Global IT industry. He has also 
established a Charitable Trust and a Hospital as his contribution towards the society.  
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2. Sajid Iqbal Abdul Hameed, Promoter and Whole Time Director 
Mr. Sajid Hameed, aged 44 years, is the Whole Time Director of our Company. He is also 
the promoter of our Company. He is an Engineering Graduate (Electronics) from Mumbai 
University and has completed his Master’s from Sikkim Manipal University. He has an 
excellent track record of aggressively building, developing and executing strategic vision 
for business growth. He uses his diversified range of technology engineering, marketing, 
sales and management experience to oversee Octaware global business operations. He 
has more than two decades of experience in this field and has worked with many fortune-
500 companies. 
 
3. Mohammed Siraj Gunwan, Whole Time Director 
Mr. Siraj Gunwan, aged 46 years, is the Whole-Time Director of our Company. He leads 
and manages the engineering division of the company. He has an extensive experience in 
solution design, product development and enterprise delivery across multiple verticals. 
He is a technology specialist with more than two-decade years of experience in 
Information Technology industry working for leading financial and governmental 
organisation such as Commercial Bank, GIS Centre for excellence in Qatar and Department 
of Science & Technology in India. He has completed Bachelor of Engineering in Computer 
Science from Karnataka University. 

 
4. Usha Mishra, Independent Director 
Mrs. Usha Mishra, aged 54 years old, has done MBA along with Graduation in Science and 
Post-Graduation in PR & Journalism. She has pioneered the concept of equal rights of 
handicapped and underprivileged women. In her last 30 years of social work and service 
to humanity she has brought modern technology and concepts at workplace for women 
and handicapped people. Her unique experiment of creating an inclusive workplace has 
won accolades both in the government and the private sector. Her work has been a beacon 
of hope for the most under represented community in the Indian society. The Govt of 
Haryana awarded her due recognition on the Republic Day 2018 as “The Best NGO to 
Implement Govt Practices”. She is also an external member in the IICA ICC committee. 

 
5. Krishnan Narayanan, Independent Director  
Mr. Krishnan Narayanan, aged 50 years, is the Non-Executive Independent Director of our 
Company. He has obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering from the 
Annamalai University in the year 1988 and a Post-Graduation Diploma in Business 
Administration from the Annamalai University in the year 1989. He has 25 years of 
technology leadership experience in financial services across various Asia Pacific markets 
including Japan, Korea, Hong Kong, Malaysia and Singapore and has worked as Managing 
Director of UBS, Director in Prudential Corporation Asia, and as a Vice President at 
Citibank. He has rich experience in all aspects of the Information Technology life cycle 
with exposure to business domains of retail and commercial banking, investment banking, 
insurance, asset and wealth management.  
 
6. Ms. Rabia Khan, Additional (Independent) Director 
Ms. Rabia Khan, aged 45 years old, brings to the board rich financial expertise that 
includes extensive knowledge of the economics, financial and operational issues, and a 
deep understanding of accounting principles and financial reporting rules and 

http://mrs.usha/
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regulations. As chairperson of the Audit committee, Dr. Rabia, amongst others, is 
responsible for, providing significant insight into the preparation of financial statements 
and knowledge of audit procedures.  
She nurtures a keen interest in designing and implementing policies and advocacy 
strategies about evaluation criteria of board, board diversity, governance, nomination and 
remuneration. Realizing the central role of communication and, because of her personal 
and particular interest in them, Dr. Rabia built skills in strategic communication and 
outreach, leading her to supervise stakeholders’ relationship committee. Dr Rabia’s 
special qualifications for serving on Octaware’s board of directors include extensive 
knowledge and expertise in financing, governance, communication, and blend of academic 
insights.  
Dr. Rabia holds a Ph.D. in Economics from the Aligarh Muslim University and developed 
research project in the area of econometrics and mathematical economics. Her major 
research focus is on studying structural adjustment program and food security in India. 
She has participated in several conferences sharing her learnings and knowledge. Dr 
Rabia is a passionate and absolutely loves teaching mathematics and science. 

 
 

        Committees of the board 
 

As on 31st March, 2019, the Company had three committees of the Board of Directors - 
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee. 

 

  1.   Audit Committee 
 

(a) Terms of Reference: 
 
The terms of reference of this Committee include matters mandated in the Listing 
Agreement and the Companies Act, 2013, respectively. The Audit Committee reviews the 
audit reports submitted by the Auditors and to meet them to discuss their findings, 
suggestions and other related matters, financial results, effectiveness of internal audit 
processes, Company’s risk management strategy and Company’s established systems 
and procedures. The Audit Committee also reviews the functioning of the Whistle Blower 
mechanism. Besides having access to all the required information from within the 
Company, the Committee may obtain external professionals advice, whenever required. 
The Committee acts as a link between the Statutory and the Internal Auditors and the 
Board of Directors of the Company. 

 
(b) The Composition of Audit Committee as at 31.03.2019 and details of the Members 

participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 
 
On 7th December, 2015, the Audit Committee was constituted comprising of 2 Non-
Executive and Independent Directors viz. Mr. Shariq Nisar and Ms. Sarika Lidoria and 1 
Executive Director, Mr. Mohammed Aslam Khan. Ms. Rabia Khan is a Chairman of the 
Audit Committee. However, one of the member Mr. Shariq Nisar a (Independent 
Director) resigned from company on 31st January, 2019 and Ms. Rabia Khan 
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(Independent Director) was appointed on 11th February, 2019.  All the members of Audit 
Committee have financial and accounting knowledge. 
 
 
 

(c) Attendance:  
 

Name Designation No. of meetings 
held during the 
year 

No. of meetings 
attended 

Shariq Nisar 
(Resigned on 
31.01.2019) 

Chairman 4 4 

Usha Mishra Member 4 4 
Mohammed 
Aslam Khan 

Member 4 2 

    
 

                        Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees  

 

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy. However, no personnel are being denied any 
access to the Audit Committee. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 (9) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014, every listed company, Companies which accept deposits from the 
public and Companies which have borrowed money from banks and Public Financial 
Institutions in excess of fifty crores rupees shall establish a vigil mechanism for their 
directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or grievances. 

 
  2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
(a) Terms of Reference 

This Committee shall identify the persons, who are qualified to become Directors of the 
Company / who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria 
laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and also shall carry 
out evaluation of every director’s performance. Committee shall also formulate the 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independent of the Directors 
and recommend to the Board a Policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

 
(b) The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at 

31.03.2019 and details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the 
Committee are as under:     

 
On 7th December, 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted 
comprising of 3 Non-Executive and Independent Directors viz. Mr. Shariq Nisar, Ms. 
Sarika Lidoria and Mr. Krishnan Narayanan. However, one of the member Mr. Shariq 
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Nisar a (Independent Director) resigned from company on 31st January, 2019 and Ms. 
Rabia Khan (Independent Director) was appointed on 11th February, 2019.   

     
   (c) Attendance:  

 
Name Designation No. of meetings 

held during the 
year 

No. of meetings 
attended 

Usha 
Mishra 

Member 2 2 

Shariq 
Nisar 
(Resigned 
on 
31.01.2019) 

Member 2 2 

Krishnan 
Narayanan 

Member 2 0 

 
Remuneration Policy 
 
Sitting Fees: 
The Company pays sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board of Directors and 
for attending the meeting of the Committee of Directors to Non-Executive Director(s). 
 
Managing and Executive Directors: 
The Company pays remuneration to its Managing Director and Whole Time Directors by 
way of salary, allowances and perquisites as per the Company’s rules.  The salary and 
other perquisites are approved by the Board of Directors on recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the salary is paid within the overall limits 
approved by the members of the Company.  
 
The Remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the Extracts of the Annual Return as 
mentioned in the Form MGT-9 in the report. No sitting fee is paid to Executive Directors.    

 
3. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee: 
 

Our Company has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to redress 
complaints of the shareholders. The Committee was constituted vide resolution passed 
at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on December 7th ,2015. 
 

(a) Terms of Reference: 
 The Committee focuses primarily on monitoring expeditious redressal of investors / 

stakeholder’s grievances. 
  

(b) The Composition of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee as at 31.03.2019 and 
details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under:   
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                   The Stakeholder ‘s Relationship Committee comprises the following Directors: 

 
Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 

Mr.Krishnan Narayanan Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Shariq Nisar (Resigned on 
31.01.2019) 

Member Independent Director 

Mr.Mohammed Siraj Gunwan Member Whole Time Director 

  
 
 
   (c) Attendance:  

 
Name Designation No. of meetings 

held during the 
year 

No. of meetings 
attended 

Krishnan 
Narayanan 

Chairman 2 0 

Shariq 
Nisar 

Member 2 2 

Mohammed 
Siraj 
Gunwan 

Member 2 2 

 

General Body Meetings: 
 

 Location and time for the last three AGMs:  
Year Date Venue Time Special Resolution(s) 
2014-
15 

30/09/15 Registered Office 12.30 
p.m. 

Not Applicable 

2015-
16 

30/09/16 Registered Office 11:00 
a.m. 

Not Applicable 

2016-
17 

21/09/17 Unit 003, Tower 
II, Seepz++ Bldg, 
Seepz Sez, 
Andheri East, 
Mumbai-400096 

10:00 
a.m. 

Not Applicable 

2017-
18 

27/09/18 Unit 003, Tower 
II, Seepz++ Bldg, 
Seepz Sez, 
Andheri East, 
Mumbai-400096 

10:00 
a.m. 

1. Reappointment of Mr. 
Mohammed Aslam 
Qudratullah Khan as the 
Managing Director; 

2. Reappointment of Mr. 
Sajid Iqbal Abdul 
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Hameed as the Whole-
time director; 

3. Reappointment of Mr. 
Mohammed Siraj 
Moinuddin Gunwan as 
the Whole-time director 

 
No Postal Ballot was conducted during the year. 

               

Disclosure : 
 

  (i) Related party Transactions 
The Company does not have any related party transactions, which may have 
potential conflict with its interest at large. 

 None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interests 
of the Company. However, the related party disclosures about list of related parties and 
transactions given under Note 20 of Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st 
March, 2019 may be referred. All related party transactions are in the ordinary course of 
business and are at arm’s length.  

 
(ii) Cases of Non-Compliance: 

No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or 
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by any statutory authority on any 
matters related to capital markets during the last three years. 

 
(iii) Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism: 

The Company has designed Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism to enable any 
person dealing with the Company to raise the alarm to the Audit Committee of the 
Company if he has reliable information about a malpractice, unethical practice, 
impropriety, abuse or financial wrongdoing. The disclosure will be thoroughly 
investigated by the Committee. The members of the Committee may seek information 
from any sources inside and outside the organization to investigate this, as deemed 
fit. 

 

Means of Communication 
 

(a) Half – yearly report sent to each 
household of shareholders 

: Yes 

(b) Quarterly results Newspapers in 
which results are normally 
published in 

: Not Applicable to our Company as the 
company is SME Listed. 

 Any website, where displayed  : www.octaware.com 
 Whether it also displays official 

news releases 
:  Yes 
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 The presentations made to 
institutional investors or to the 
analysts 

:  NIL 

 
SEBI has initiated SCORES for processing the investor complaints in a centralized web-based 
redress system and online redressal of all the shareholders complaints. The Company is in 
compliance with the SCORES. 
 

1. General Shareholder information 
 

(a) 14th AGM 
Date, Time and Venue 

: Monday, 19th August 2019 at 10 a.m. at Unit 003, 
Tower II, Seepz++ Bldg, Seepz Sez, Andheri East, 
Mumbai-400096 

(b) Financial calendar : i. April 2019 to March 2020 
   ii. Half yearly Results 2019 – on or before 15th 

November, 2019 
   iii. Audited Results for the Fourth Quarter/ Year 

ending 31st March 2020, - on or before 31st 
May, 2020. 

(c) Date of Book closure  : 10/08/2019 to 19/08/2019(both days inclusive) 
 

(d) Dividend Payment date : On or after 19/08/2019, if declared at Annual 
General Meeting on 19/08/2019 
  

(e) Listing on Stock 
Exchange.  

: The Company has paid Listing Fees for the period 1st 
April, 2019 to 31st March 2020 to BSE Limited.  

(f) (i)  Stock Code – 
Physical 

: 540416 

 (ii) Demat ISIN  
     Number for  
     NSDL & CDSL 

:  
INE208U01019  

 

 (g) Market price Date: 
High, Low during each 
month in last Financial 
year 

: 

Month 
High 
Price 

Low 
Price 

Close 
Price 

Apr-18 86 86 86 

May-18 84.75 74 80 

Jun-18 79 74.5 74.5 

Jul-18 94.95 79 94.95 

Aug-18 107.5 94.85 107.5 

Sep-18 110 104 106 

Oct-18 105 97 97 

Nov-18 105 100 100 

Dec-18 100 98 98 

Jan-19 96 96 96 

Feb-19 94.1 94.1 94.1 
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Mar-19 100 96.6 98 
 

(h) Registrar and Transfer 
Agents 

: CAMEO CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 
Subramanian Building, 
No. 1 Club House Road, 
Chennai – 600 002. 
E-mail id: investor@cameoindia.com 
 

   (i) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Share Transfer System : All the transfer and transmission requests are 
processed on fortnightly basis by Cameo Corporate 
Services Limited, being the Registrar & Transfer 
Agent (RTA). To facilitate prompt services, the RTA is 
also authorized to approve the transfers and 
dispatch the share certificates within stipulated time 
frame, if any. 

(j) Dematerialization of 
Shares and liquidity 

: 92.935% of the paid-up capital has been 
dematerialized as on 31st March, 2019. 

(k) Outstanding GDRs / 
ADRs / Warrants or 
any Convertible 
instruments, 
conversion date and 
likely impact on equity. 

: The company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / 
Warrants or any convertible instruments 

(l) Commodity price risk 
or foreign exchange 
risk and hedging 
activities 

: N.A 

(m) Plant Locations : NA 
(n) Address for 

correspondence 
: 
 
 
 
 

Shareholders correspondence should be addressed 
to either at Registered Office of the Company or at 
the address of RTA M/s. Cameo Corporate Services 
Limited given as above. 
 
Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode 
should address all their correspondence to their 
respective Depository Participant. 
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DISTRIBUTION OF HOLDINGS AS ON 31.03.2019 
 

 
Shareholding 

 
Shareholders 

 
Share Amount 

 
Rs 

 
 
 

Rs 
 

Number % of Total Rs % of total 

        10 5000 
 

0 0.0000 0 0.0000 

      5001 10000 1 0.7518 10000 0.0278 

10001 20000 78 58.6466 1250000 3.4813 

20001 
 

30000 2 1.5037 47460 0.1321 

30001 
 

40000 10 7.5187 325450 0.9064 

   40001 50000 10 7.5187 484000 1.3479 

50001 10000 9 6.7669 715050 1.9914 

100001 And Above  23 17.2932 33073740 92.1127 

Total  133 100 35905700 100 

 
SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2019 
 

Category No. of shares held % of issued paid up 
capital 

Promoters 17,30,024 48.18 % 
Public 18,60,546 51.82% 
Total 35,90,570 100% 

 
SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP 10 SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31.03.2019 
 

Sr. No Name of shareholders No. of Equity Shares % holding 
1. Mohammed Aslam Khan 10,84,742 30.2108 
2. Sajid Iqbal Abdul Hameed 6,45,282 17.9715 
3. Mohammed Siraj Moinuddin 

Gunwan 
2,63,857 7.3486 

4. Aryaman Capital Markets Limited 2,28,800 6.3722 
5. Shahnawaz Aijazuddin Shaikh 2,03,348 5.6633 
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6. Shri Ravindra Media Ventures 
Private Limited 

1,60,000 4.4561 

7. Overskud Multi Asset Management 
Private Limited 

1,82,400 5.0799 

8. Mirza Haroon Ibrahim Baig 1,33,571 3.7200 
9. Hadicon Ventures Private Limited 1,04,000 2.8964 
10. Sultan Abdul Kader 51,300 1.4287 

 
 

6. The Company has adopted and been complying with the discretionary requirements as per 
Regulation 27(1) and Part E of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
7. Familiarisation programme for independent Directors:  The Chairman and secretary of the 
Company used to familiarize the independent Directors of the Company, their roles, rights, 
responsibilities, nature of industry, compliance procedures & checkpoints etc., from time to time. 
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Declaration / Certification: 
 
a. Code of Conduct: 
The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct applicable to all the Directors and senior management of 
the Company. Necessary certification to this effect is appended to this Corporate Governance Report.  
 
b. Managing Director & CFO Certification: 
As per requirements of Corporate Governance Code, Mr. Mohammed Aslam Khan, Managing Director 
and Mr. Sajid Iqbal Abdul Hameed, Chief Financial Officer have jointly furnished the necessary 
Certificate to the Board of Directors with respect to financial statements and cash flow statements for 
the year ended 31st March, 2019.  

 

 
 

Declaration by Managing Director on Code of Conduct 
 
I, Mohammed Aslam Khan, Managing Director of Octaware Technologies Limited, do hereby declare 
that a formal code of Conduct has been laid down by the Board of Directors of Octaware Technologies 
Limited, which has been applicable to all the Directors and senior management of the Company. The 
code of Conduct has been affirmed to by all the Directors and senior management of the Company. 
 
 

 
       

                                                                              Sd/-                           
Place: Mumbai         MOHAMMED ASLAM KHAN 
Date: 29-07-2019                 MANAGING DIRECTOR 
                          DIN: 00016438 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 
To, 
The Members of, 
Octaware Technologies Limited 
Report on the Financial Statements 

 
 

Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Octaware 
Technologies Limited(“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2019 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended, cash flow statement and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information . 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2019 and profit, for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report for 
the year ended 31st March, 2019. 
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial 
performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.  
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial 
reporting process 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
  
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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 • Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 
 
 • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
 • Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 
 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the  financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
the Order, to the extent applicable. 
  
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
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We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 
 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the cash flow statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
 
In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  
 
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in “Annexure B”. 
 
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
 
The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial statements. 
 
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 
 
For MVK Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.120222W 
 
 
CA. R.P. Ladha 
Partner 
 
M. No. 048195 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29th May, 2019 
 
 

https://taxguru.in/company-law/applicability-caro-2016-ifc-reporting-ind.html
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of 
Octaware Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended 
March 31, 2019) 
 
On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and 
explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we report that: 
 
i.  (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of fixed assets. 
 

(b) As informed, the fixed assets are physically verified by the Management at regular intervals. 
No material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. 

 
(c) The Company does not have any immovable property in its name.  

  
ii.  The company does not have any inventory as on 31.03.2019. Hence, the provisions of Clause 

3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 
iii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the books of accounts, the Company has granted unsecured loan to its wholly owned subsidiary 
listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
a)  The loan is repayable on demand and the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are 

not prejudicial to the company’s interest. 
b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 

the repayment and the receipts are regular. 
c) There is no amount overdue for more than ninety days. 

 
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
any loans, guarantee and security. 

  
v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under. 

 
vi.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central 

Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the Companies Act. 

 
 
vii.  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory 
dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales tax, service tax, duty of 
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customs, duty of excise, value added tax, and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, there are no dues of, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty 
of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute,  

 
viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation 

given to us, the Company has neither borrowed loans from any financial institution, bank, 
government nor has issued debentures as at the balance sheet date. 

 
ix. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer and term loans during the year. Accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order 
are not applicable to the company. 

 
x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material 
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

 
xi. According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that managerial 

remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated 
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act. 

 
xii As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 

provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 
xiii. In our opinion and as per information and explanations provided to us by management all the 

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the provisions of sections 177 and 
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
xiv. The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 

partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the company. 

 
xv. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation 

given to us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 
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xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934.  

 
 

For MVK Associates  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 120222W 
 
 
 
CA. R. P. Ladha 
Partner 
M. No.: 048195 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 29th May, 2019
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(e) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section 
of our report of even date)  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Octaware Technologies 
Limited (“the Company”) as on 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
 The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act. 
 
 Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgments, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
 A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that 
 
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  
 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and  
 
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.  
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 
 
 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 
 
For MVK Associates  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 120222W 
 
 

 
CA. R.P. Ladha 
Partner 
M. No.: 048195 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 29th May, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
 

To, 
The Members of, 
Octaware Technologies Limited 
 
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Octaware 
Technologies Limited, the parent (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Holding Company’) and its 
wholly owned subsidiary (collectively referred to as ‘the ‘Group’), which comprising of the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to 
as “the consolidated financial statements”), which we have signed under reference to this 
report. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act 

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 

2019 and consolidated profit, for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 

Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. 
 

Key Audit Matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
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whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters.  
 
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report for 
the year ended 31st March, 2019. 

Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial 

performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 

to do so.  

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial 

reporting process 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
  
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 
 • Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 
 
 • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
 • Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the  financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 
 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
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our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 
 
We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of one subsidiary, whose 
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 30.44 lakhs as at March 31, 2019, total revenue 
loss of Rs. 920.06 lakhs and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 04.59 lakhs for the year ended 
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial 
statements / financial information are audited by another chartered accountant and his 
report has been relied upon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 

respect to our reliance on the work done and the financial statements / financial 

information certified by the Management 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not 

applicable to the Company.  

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c.  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss and 

consolidated cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

Report in “Annexure A”. 
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 

consolidated financial position of the Group.  
 

ii. The group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 
 

For MVK Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.120222W 

 

 

 

CA. R.P. Ladha 

Partner 

M. No. 048195 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 29th May, 2019 
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Annexure‘A’ 
 

 

REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Act 
 
1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and 

for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Octaware Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Holding Company”) 
and its subsidiary company as of that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 
2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company, are 

responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation, and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls which were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and the Standards on Auditing 
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

  
4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included operating and 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exist, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
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judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial 
statement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the representation received from the 

management for the entities un-audited referred to in the other matters paragraph below, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting. 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 
6. A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles. A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that:  

 
i. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurate and fairly reflect 
the transaction and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
 
ii.  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 
 
iii.  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or dispositions of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 
7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future period are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
 
8. In our opinion, the holding company, its subsidiary companies, have, in all material respect, and 

adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India as it appears from our examination of the books and records of the Holding Company and 
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the representation received from the other auditor for subsidiary audited by the other auditor. 
 
Other Matters 

 
9. Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting, insofar as it relates to the 
audited one subsidiary company is based on the representation received from the other auditor. 
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter. 
 
 

For MVK Associates  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 120222W 
 
 
 
 
CA. R.P. Ladha 
Partner 
M. No. : 048195 

 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 29th May, 2019 
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OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED                                                                 PROXY FORM 
         
CIN: L72200MH2005PLC153539 
Regd. Office: 204, Timmy Arcade, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai-400059 
Tel: +91-22-28293949, Fax: +91-22-28293959 
Website: www.octaware.com 
E-mail: investor@octaware.com 
 

Name of the Member(s): 
Registered address: 
E-mail ID: 
Folio No/DP ID-Client ID: 

  
I/We being the Member(s), holding ____________ of the above named company, hereby appoint: 
  

1 Name  
Address 
Email id  

Signature  

2 Name  
Address 
Email id  

Signature  

3 Name  
Address 
Email id  

Signature  

As my / our Proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 14th Annual 
General Meeting to be held on Monday, 19th August, 2019, at 10.00 a.m. at Unit 003, Tower II, Seepz++ 
Bldg, Seepz Sez, Andheri East, Mumbai-400096 and adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below:  
 
Ordinary Business: 
1. Adoption of Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2019. 
2.           To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mohammed Siraj Moinuddin Gunwan (DIN No.: 

02507021) who retries by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 
3.  To re-appoint M/s MVK Associates, Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditor of the 

company for the financial year 2019-20 
 
Special Business: 
4.          To Appoint Ms. Rabia Khan as the Independent Director of the company 
 
In this 19th day of August, 2019 
Signature of shareholder: ____________________ Signature of Proxy holder(s):  _______________ 
 
Note: This form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

Form No. MGT-12 
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Polling Paper 
[Pursuant to Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
Name of the Company OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 
Registered Office CIN: L72200MH2005PLC153539 

204, Timmy Arcade, Makwana Road, 
Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai-400059 
Tel +91 22 28293949, Fax: +91 22 
28293959 
Website: www.octaware.com 
E-mail: investor@octaware.com 

Sr.No Particulars Details 
1 Name of the First Named Shareholder 

( In Block Letter) 
 

2 Postal Address  
3 Registered Folio No./8 Client ID No. 

(* Applicable to investors holding shares in 
dematerialized form) 

 

4 Class of Share Equity Shares 
I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary / Special resolution enumerated below by 
recording my assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following manner. 
No. Item No. No. of 

shares 
held by 
me 

I assent to  
the 
resolution 

 I dissent to 
the 
resolution 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Financial Statement including Consolidated 
Financial Statement as at March 31, 2019 together 
with Report of Directors and Auditors thereon 
(Ordinary Resolution) 

   

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mohammed 
Siraj Moinuddin Gunwan (DIN No.:02507021) 
who retries by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment (Ordinary Resolution) 

   

3. To appoint M/s MVK Associates, Chartered 
Accountants as the statutory auditor of the 
company for the financial year 2019-20 
(Ordinary Resolution) 

   

4. To Appoint Ms. Rabia Khan as the Independent 
Director of the company (Special Resolution) 

   

 
 
 
Date: …./…../2019 
Place:Mumbai                                                                                          (Signature of the Shareholder) 
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OCTAWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED                                            ATTENDANCE SLIP 
                     
CIN: L72200MH2005PLC153539 
204, Timmy Arcade, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai-400059 
Tel +91 22 28293949, Fax: +91 22 28293959 
Website: www.octaware.com 
E-mail: investor@octaware.com 
 
 

Name of the Member(s): 
Registered address: 
E-mail ID: 
Folio No/DP ID-Client ID: 
 
Number of Shares held: 

 
I/We certify that I am a member / proxy of the Company.  
 
I hereby record my presence at the 14th Annual general Meeting of the Company to be held at its 
registered office Monday, 19th August, 2019, at 10.00 a.m. at Unit 003, Tower II, Seepz++ Bldg, Seepz 
Sez, Andheri East, Mumbai-400096 
 
 
__________________________                    ____________________________ 
Name of the Member / Proxy             Signature of the Member / Proxy 
(In Block Letters) 
 
Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. Members 
are requested to bring their copies of Annual report 2018-19 for the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:investor@octaware.com
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                  Route Map of the Venue of the Annual General Meeting is apprehended below: 
 
 

 



 


